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Authority NWND 53078
! P.0.Box 204,...12 Rizal Street

s Iloile City, Philippines.
December 12,1948,

The Commanding Genersal
U.S.Claim Service ,PHILRYCOM
Manila,Philippines,

Dear Sir:
Please permit me to submit the following:

At the outbreak of the past war with Japan on Dec.8,1941,T was
in the employ of the Pacifie Commercial Compang,its Iloilo Branch,
in the capacity as auditor in charge of accounting,handling of all
funds,credits,etec. Following Pearl Harbor I sent my famlly to an
interior townand at once wrote a letter to the Commanding General,
offering my services for whatever work he might find me fitted for,
A few days later,I quit the Pacific Commercial Company and went with
Col.Carter H‘MnLennan,U.s.grmg,tn assist in the organization of the
Iloilo Navigation Head (Sepot Q.M.,etce.)e I served as Chief Clerk of
this organization under Col,lNeLennan until April 9,1942 when he was
relieved and sent to Negpps Oceidental for organization of forces at
that point,and then under Major Richard I.Jones until the City of
Iloilo was invaded by Japanese forces on the morning of April 16,1942.
I was able to escape through the Japanese lines and joined my family
in a barrio of Pototan lunicipality.Here I remained,keeping clear of
the Japs, until,in the end,on Feb,.21,1944,they found my hide-out.
While the Japanese killed seven of our neighbors,through the help
of the people of the barrio,I was able to escape with my family, A
few days later,by orders purporting to have come from Headquarters
of the U.S.Army,I turned myself over to the Guerrilla Forces to be
taken to a safety zone, Instead of this,I,among others,was taken to
the northern part of Antique Province from whence we were evacuated
by submarine,and taken to Australia.From there we were sent to San
Franciscosarriving June 5,1944, I immediately went to work &t the U.S,
NHaval Drydocks at Hunter's Point,continuing to work there until I
1eft to return to the Philippines on Mar.l6,1947. I arrived at Iloilo
April 9,1947, I am writing all this as an explanation for what follows.

When I first went with Col.lMclennan,the City of Iloilo had been
practically evacuated,there having been but a very few people left
in the city. Col.MecLennan was instructed to organize the Navigation
Head,but had nothing to work with. He was in full charge of shipping
out of Iloilo,and he was being called upon to procure subsistence
suﬂpliﬂssm&kﬂ shipments of troops to lMindanao and towards Battan,etce.
1t was essential that the Navigation Head be established immediatelys
portunately,as I had been with the PCC,and it was closing out its -
pusiness, I knew of a sufficient number of experienced men to fnrmTh
our office force,and the serve in the procurement of supplies,etce t:g
had left Ilollo to go to the hills,this since an invasion was iﬁpnge-
ot any time. I got these men baeck from where they were living it
ty at the time,and they remained in Iloilo until the lnvasion e Bl

Navigation Head had to be abandoned. Japanese planes W

o W2 bings. In the end,
over almost daily,and there were several bombings.

i f the
;Qgilﬂ Gity was practically deserted except for the PETEGEHEE ihat
Navigation Head,and the only military forces were composed of WIS\ .

1 came
was called a sulclde companyse Then the invaaiﬁgllad.:
ber cot away,some werse hurt,and several were

ay ;
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I haVe—w...Eten the foregoing,trying to give a clear explanation
as to why I should be interested in the welfare of the men employed
by the Navigation Head, Having no assistant,Col.licLennan had to leave
many things to me,his Chief Clerk. I personally hired the majority
of the men,and it was I who set their salary. In this connection,
please to note that the men employed at the Navigation Head received
as pay no more than fifty or sixty per cent of what they had been
receiving in commereial life. The majority had but recently been drop-
ped from the PCC,and they had been paid a bonus for gservice with the
company. They had money,and it hadn't been necessary for them to
return to a danger zone. They thought that they were doing Their bit
to help win the war,and I can vouch that they did good service.

On April 14,1943 l}ajor Jones made a trip to Divisional leadquarters
to secure funds with which to pay the men. He had in mind to not only
pay them for their service from April 1lst to 15th,but he had in mind
to make an advance as was beine done with other organizations.They
needed the money as practically everything had been removed from the
city. Payrolls were prepared on Apr.l5th,and were in the possession
of the Finance Officer,Captain Prudencio Palafox,USAFFE. But this
money was never paid as the invasion came early in the morning of
April 16th. I can state,therefore,that all employses of the Navigation
Head were pald only to include March 31,1942. They,each and every one
of them,has pay cominghto them for the period April 1-16,1942, However,
while these may have been considered as temporary employees,the most
of them were on the rolls from December of 1941 to April 16,1942 (with
some exceptions). In accord with pre-war regulations in force in the
Islands,where a man was kept on over one month,he was considered as
permanentjand,if dropped,such employee was entitled to one months'
pay in lieu of notice. Admitted the circumastances,but 1t has always
appeared to me that these men should have been allowed the one month.
Fﬂut,tf} TEPEﬂt,thEF ars SU.I‘E'].F antitled to thelir pay from Apr.lst to 16%hs

Ag soon as I got back from the U.S. during 1947,these men began
coming to me,asking them that I assist them in getting their money. I
was naturally interestedj;in fact,under all circumstances,l considered
it my dutye I found that these men had been processed singly,in sec-
+ionss and in mass,many of them several times. 1 went to the 8laim
office here in Iloilo,and they didn't kmow anything about it,ﬂ&ying
that no doubt the papers were in Manila. I requested that the files
be gearched to be sure, This was done,and the folder was found.I
o no less than three heads of teams,and each promised that the
matter would be attended to. And,still,many of these men keep coming
to me,wanting to lmow why they hadn't been pald. There can be no doubt
aﬁaut +his account. I can recognize every name that may have appeared
on the rolls of the Navigation Headyand I am more than willing to cover
by an affidavit, I atated this at the Claim Office;moreover,l
save the address of Col.Carter R.MeLennan whom I'm sure will furnish
= squired affidavit,especially if [ can assure him that such men
sy =2 the rolls. Col.lcLennan was a very busy man,and he
were actually on the T . olicL 8 v

hadn't much time to spend on detalled work.

spoke b

same

I do not kmow how
ALEJANDR IA

ne twice the
“have made

that some of these men have been paid.
name I have in mind at present is TEOFILO
ing ¥50,00 monthly,although he was recelvi
g Pacific Commereial Co, This man claims to

I expect
meny. Lne one
who was rene;y
amount with ©h
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out an submitted an individual claim. This was in accord with the in-
structions of your Iloilo Branch Office. The amount in question is
small,only some F25,00,but it appears quite large to a man who has
nothing. May I request that this name be looked up to see what action,
if any,has ever been taken? It will be greatly appreciated,

This is a lengthy letter to send,I admit,but if I'm going to write
at all,I may as well make it understandable. I think I have. To repeat,
the men thus employed are entitled to one-half month at least,and I
rould request that thev be paid. My understanding is that all former
were processed. If T may see these names,and I recognige them as hav-
ing been employed,I will Eladly sign an affidavit;further,if it may
be necessary,considering the amounts so small,I will submit such names
to Col.licLennan for his approval. Again,Capt.Prudencio Palafox,now
with the Philippine Army ,may possibly be able to recall the names
of those employed. He was the finance officer for the Navigation Head.

Trusting that thig letter will be given due consideration,and
that these small accounts of the Navigation Head be cleared,I am,sir,

478 - A ,e:"#)‘:; 2L 7
L ﬁﬁgﬁciﬁfﬁiﬁ;i¥%3§§;? {fﬁjﬁ
PaSas |

Should your offjce desire to communicate with Col.lcLennan,

FiS present address ig Army Retiring Board,Walter Reed General Hospital,
Hashiﬂgtﬂe 12,D.,C, Hig home address is 215 East Kennedy Street,
Syracuse,lew York, ag T say,he commanded the Iloilo Navigation Head
from its inception until April 9,1942. He was then relieved by Major
(now col.) Richard I.Jones. I do not know his present whereabouts.

If there is more information I can give to enable your office to
settle these small claims,I trust that you will so advise.
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AFFIDAVIT Ll

Flipino citizen, and a re-
Ing to law, deyose and *y:

I, Iuis Sirilan of 1
aident af the Clty of llei.
after having been duly nm¢

That I was the Assistant District Engineer of Capiz, Capiz.
bafore the Faeific war broke out; that when the war brole out on
8 December 1941, I was detailed sometimes in the construetion of
Pilar and Dumarso landing Tiecldsj

!hai I have the full knowledge of the constructions of these

“twd landing, fi21ds (¢ilar & Dumarao); that these projects being

supsrvised #nd paid for by the Ammed Porees of the United States;

That in my capgeity as one of the supervisors of these two
landing fields { Pilar and Dumerac) I became familiar with the

signatures of many 0fficers and enlisted men and also civilian

amployees who were inductad into the USATFE:

puchers sutmitbed by Iluminado Villaruz;

Biares 1012

v# That I have inspected and examined the Requisition and Iesue

L 1% 8 *ﬂﬂﬂﬂr & Be Acovedo

20 ¥ " C.l. Spsneer & B. Acovedo
1 prdl v R, dela Cruz
Seril * R, dels Cruz & Miguel Roa
- il . H.A« Mann & Miguel Roa
9 y ’ H.A+ Mann
10 " " H.As Mann & Miguel Roa

That I have seen the above montioned Officers signed their names
on Army ers on soveral cscasions; and that I certify to best of
e uﬁa and belief, that the signatures appearing thereon

mymﬁﬂh'

s/ Luis Sirilan
%/ 1LUIS SIRILAN

" Subseribed and sworn to before me this' 12th day of October
19464 '

.  HOWARD 0. MENZEL
Certifying Claima Invoutigator

DECLASSIFIED
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b W
Geyvacio Frijneisco, being first duly sworn on oath, deposes
and says H

That he id a Major, Finance Service, P.h., and presently asslgned
to the Regional Finance Office, Visayas, Mindanso end Sulu District;
that prior to &pril 16, 1942 he was assigned as Division Finance
Officer, Glst Division, USAFFE, and stationed in the City of Tloilo;

That in January of 1942 arrangements were made with the Philip-
pine National Bank in Tloilo for the Pinance 0ffice of the 61lst Divi-
sion to draw upon an overdraft account created ard set up in the bank
for the peyment of sgalaries, commendeered goods and all other types of
army obligations were apid through this account in the form of a check
{ssued by the Philippine National Bank and bearing the stamp across
the face of the check tha* it was payeble to the &lst Pivision, USAFTFE;
that ell of these checks were signed by myeelf apd by Lt. Jack Hulme
who was appointed and sgsigned acs Division Auditor;

That in the processing ond paying of TSAFFE Accounts the vouchers
wonld he prepareﬁl ard cgrtifieﬂ by the quﬂTtErﬂ'I.ElEtET Office and would
then be delivered to the Finance Office for payment; that all checks
which were issued were drawn for the payment of wvouchers which had been
properly end correctly prepared and had been thoroughly checked and
approved; that most of the checks issued were nresented and cashed by
the Philippine Natidhel Bank but some of the checks issued in Harch
or April 1942 are still outstanding end unpaid; that these checks Te-
present accounts which had been fully approved, certified and checked
prior to the issuance or drawing of the checks for their payment and
that all papers, such =s receipts, lnvoices, requisition orders, were
all presented to the Quartermaster Office or Finance Office in proof
of the acoount and the cheok delivered and payment thereofj that all
records of the Finance Office supporting the issuance of these checks
were lost or burned during the Japanese occupation and so far as is

known, there are no aveilable records of any type of the Finance Office,
61st Division, USAFFE, now in existence, v o

/s/ Gervacio Francisco
/t,/ GERVACTO FRANCISCO

Subseribed and sworn to before me this 23rd dey of January, 1946,

/s/ Boynton Kamb
/t/ BOINTON KAMB

A CERTIFIED TRUE COFY1
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I, LORENZO H. CORTUNA, lst Iieutenant, AGS, 0-23519, pre-
gently stationed et Cemp Hernandez, Municipality of Dingle, Pro-
vince of Ileilo, Philippines, after having been duly sworn to
according to law, depose amnd say:

That I was enlisted with the Philippine Constabulary on
16 April 1925, and was inducted into the USAFFE 25 December 1941,
and assigned as Administrative Clerk, G-I, 6lst Division, USAFFE,
stetioned in Panay; T

——

That as Administrative Clerk, G-I, 6let Division, USAFTE, [
I wes in charge of pll records and ooster of Officers and troops
and persomnmel of the 6ist Division, USAFFE;

That I kmow personally and hed been many times in contact
with Capt. Antonio Lucero, who was assigned Chief Procuremsnt Of-
ficer, QMS, 6lst Division, USAFFE, prior to April 16, 1942, and
I am femiliar with and can identify his slgnature;

That I have exsmined the signature of Capt. Antonio lucero,
QM8, Res., appearing on the Invoice of Pablo Dulalia dated 31 March
1942, e well as on Commandeering Receipt of the same date, and I
recognize and identify both signatures as the true: end -genuine sig-
natures of the sald Capt. Antonio Lusero.

A, leoigeria’

LORENZO N, CORTUNA
l-t L’-ﬂtl' m. 'u-mli'

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 9th day of April 1946.
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I, Florentino Visitacion, Filipino citizen and a resident of

Iloilo City, Philippines, being first duly sworn on cath depose and

8y |

That on 1 January 1942 T was employed by the USAFFE Port Quarter-
master, Iloile City, as Bookkeeper, Voucher Clerk and Typist; that I

was under the direct supervision of Mr. Francls A. Whitney, Chief

U

Clerk of the Port Quartermaster, Captain Prudencic T. Palafex, F5, Port
Quartermaster, now Major, FS, PA, Captain C, P. Moat, Acting Port Quar-

termaster, and under the over-all supervision of Major Richard Jones,
successor te Colenel Carter R. MclLennan, Port Quartermaster; and that
I continued in this capacity until 16 April 1942, when the Japanese
invaded Panay}

That after the purchase or commandeering of supplies by the Port

Quartermaster, an official receipt was issued by the office of the
Port Quartermaster to the seller; that the original receipt was never
issued until the delivery or taldng of 21l supplies had been checked
in the Port Quartermaster office; that the seller then would prepare
his involce and deliver both the original receipt and three copies of
the invoice for the preparation and issuance of a voucher; that when the

the basls of pric

voucher was then prepared, it was approved by the proper effieials on
1] uﬂt.a on the Lﬂfﬂiﬂﬁﬂ, with the undlruf.inding that

the Price Fixing Committee would finally determine all prices;

That in my work I became familiar with the signetures of Major

Richard Jones, successor to Colonel Carter R. Mglennan, Port Quarter-

ter; that I have examined the oignatures of Major Richard Jones and

N iy O« Wain appearing on the General Voucher and my own signature

on the receipt as follows;

Purehase Orders Nos, 1140 and 1157 dated 10 and 13 April 1942

ey ) ter
(Bxhibit g ‘:"'“"‘ by Major E‘lil:hard Jones, Port Quartermas

General Voucher covered by Purchase Order Nos. 111hﬂ and 1157

for F157.12, signed by I:jrur Richard Jones, Pert Quartermaster,
a8 to the correctness of the amount of goods purchased and signed
by ¥r. Monty 0, Wain, Property and Subsistence Agent, certifying
the £oods s having been received by the office of the Port Quar-
termaster (ymxhibit )3

Receipt dated 1p Apri) jgned by me for various fresh food-
stuffs purchased by hhnlgﬁr;l ‘mh,za by two unnumbered invoices

for the amount of P78,31 (mxhibit )

and certify that they are ¢ d authentic signatures of Major
Rlshard Jonss, Monty O, Yaln, snd my owne

lst Lt., Infantry
Investigating Officer

master, Monty O, Wain, Property and Subssitence Agent, Port Quartermas-
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! I, Igmedio de los Sentos, of legel age, married,
. F1lipino, end resident of the City ol Ilollo, Fhillippines,
i r - gfter having beon duly sworn t¢ in accordence with the law,
Aeroae and apyt

That on 14 Dgoenbher, 1841, I volunteered for induction
1rto the USAFEE, 4nd wes given the rank of Frivate. I'was
digcharged on 12 Hebruary, 1942,

On 13 Pehruady, 1242, I wes glven the Job of timekeeper
gt Port Quartermasfer Tloilo by Col., Carter Maclenan U.S.A.
I eontinued in thig capacity untll 15 April, 1942,

I herehby certify thal I prepared the attached time-
boek of emuloyees st Port QM., Ilolle, and thst this 1s the
original cony.

I tTurthesr cer
foremne, prepared
Emeracn refused to
dueto their peR st
the truck number
deslpnated trucks,

ify that Mr. Emerson, American clvilian
e 1ist of four (&) trucks and that Mr,
ccept thege trucks.f{or use &t Fort Q.K,
e of repveir, Thet the nsmes shown with
tre Pert Q.M. driversg assignsd to the

2130 thet thel 1iet of laborers titled 7 April, 1542
wes nrerared by me, end thet these laborers wnrknq overtime
on 7 Aprii, 1942 [rpm 4:00 o'eloek pame Lo 9:00 o'clock p.m,

ched 1liat of headald Igmg%higa 1:;!&::1-

| repared the Office of Fort Q.M, Ilollo

.' tg.:,:l :gpmepaince was timekeaper for the group. "The
Erigin-l 1ist consipsted of approximately eighty (80)
names ; however somg of the names have now been obliterated,

mhatl, the et

| Tt WITHESS WITREC®, I have hereunto set my hand in
, the City of Iloilo,| Philippines, Lhis 2nd day of November,

1945, {F C?j( ,d }/;’ M

| ] IGHEDIO DE LO3 SANTOS
g i

Subseribed (knd evorn to before me this 2nd day of
November, 1945, st A¥PAC Customs liouse, Iloile Oity.

:: "1ist WAREIN A, VICK

of laborers ﬂ-l Inf.

|
|
!
I

itﬁﬂ} i;auﬂwy

Asst, Dir., Investigation Div.
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CERTIFICATE

I, Emilio Conanan, ‘do hereby certify that I was em-
ployed at Port Quartermaster, USAFIE, La Paz, Iloilo City,
Panay, P.I. as a foreman of a cargo detail. I began work
as & foreman on 1 February, 1942 and worked as such until
15 April, 1942 due to the Japanese landing on Panay the
following day.

I further certify that Igmedio de los Santos, Time-
keeper for Port Quartermaster, made the entries shown in
this time book. I also certify that this book is the
original time book prepared in April, 1942. Also that
I know Igmedio de los Santos personally and worked with
him during the course of our employment at Fort Quarter-
master,

/s/ Bmilio A. Conanan
/t/ EMILTO COMANAN
Foreman
Port QM Iloilo

Subscribed and sworn to before me this Znd day
of H::l‘iﬁzlJ':i:-.gm-:Ir 1945,

/8/ Gustave C. Boesch, Jr.
/t/ GUSTAVE C. BOESCH, JR.
151:' L!i’ IHF'I- A

rs P, ;
Major, Infantry
Assistant Director
Investigation Division
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I, ANTONIC PLA, in charge of Procursement Sectlon of
Port Quartermaster, Iloilo, after having been duly sworn,
hereby certlfy and declare:

That I first became connected with Port Quartermaster
on 8th Deceaber 1941, as & Peso a year man, to help Col,
McLlenan, 26th Cavalry, organlze same, That by lst February
1942, Port Quartermaster was completely organized, and all
regular employees including myeelf were placed on a regular

yroll, However, several employees were already on a steady
employment basis,

That a 1list of the regular employees, fifty (52) two
in number had previously been submitted, and these were the
only regular employees of Fort Juartermaster of Ilollo,

That labourers were obtained by contacting the
Fersonnel Section, who in turn, hired labourers by the day,
Employment of labourers was a simple matter, slnce most
civilian places were closed and crowds of civillan labourers
assembled at our offices, walting for a job, These labou-
rers.were hired on a daily basis, placed on & separaie pay-
roll, and pald dsily, by Captain Prudencio Palafox, Finance
Officer, Fort Quartermaster, '

That 15th April 1942, was the last day that Fort
Quartermaster functicned; ceasing on that day because of
the Japanese landing in Iloilo.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I affixed my slgnature this
8th day of December 1945,

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 8th day of
December 1945, at iloile City, Ilello, Panay,

Hana flcd

WARREN A, VICK
Capt., Inf,
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CERTIFICATE
1, ELVIRO ALBALADEJO, of legal age ino, and g
resident of tue City of iloilo, hereby certifies that

the followlng is true and corrects

That I was a reseprve officer called inte active on
13 December 1941 and inducted inte the service of the
on the same wsm.m,amcm.n at Fort San
Pedro, Ilollo City, assigned as Commanding bggicer of
the 3rd Bn, 64th Inf, Glst Pivision, and later procurement
officer of the G4th inf, and after that assigned to the Dase
Quartermaster of the 6lst Dipision, attached to the 64th Inf,
with the rank of Captein until the tlm of surrender to the
Japanese forcee; |

That durlng the time I had my above assignments, I came
to know many officers and enlisted men and became fanilisp
with thelr signatures and could identify them;

That I have examin ture on the receipt dated
14 April 1942 luhmlttuzﬁbf ?ir:lﬂm Carola de Ford and I
hareby Gertify that the signature and initisl thereon are_
the true and suthentlo pignature and inltiale of Lt A G Nunes;

gt o 0. K ] d regoliection and bellef,
the regelnt ia Eﬁnuiﬁg_ﬁnmh ge,

R

EXHIBIT

e 2
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i ; Authunty_%ﬁ

REFUBLIC OF THE FHILIFPINES ) By
;1 B.3.
OITY OF MANILA )

|

AZZLIDAXIE

I, ALFONSO FRAN, umm Golonel, PA, of legal age, widower,
P11ipino, snd presently assigned with the Accountedility Investige-

$ion Board, HPA, Oamp Murphy, Queson Oity, after having Ssen duly
sworn acecording to lew, depose and 'url

That before the War, I was 2 member of the Fhilippine Amy
and of the USATFE with the rank of Major, and was assigned as Qua-
termaster, PA, of the 68h Military Pistrict, with station at Iloile

That on or about May, 1941, I with an Americen Army Officer,
L4-0ol. George Olarke, VSA, went to the Maniecipality of Anilse,
I10ils, Philippines, to look for site for a Camp, and one of thowe
{neluded was the property of Mr, Mareelino Buyeo of Anilme, Ilefle,
bound on the North by the Provinocisl Road to Banate, and en the South
by the Oulub Creek;

% upon permissi and suthorisation of the said Maresles.
Buyeo, i‘:-wmhtl::n-l. g8,, entersd the land and con-
structed Army Semporary Wuildings thereat on or sbout August 1941,

That before the land was ocecupled by the Aray, the land
was planted with sigar eane and palsy, which crops vere destroyed
“Ihuuimﬂn-!thmumnlﬂthﬂm

That after the completion of Army temporary bulldings, the
I-l'ﬂ-;ul-:mlu h".-‘l.li Division, m-:bmm H:.
ﬂmm.lﬂl. Mmhinl m

ty
sl Battalion, Glst Pivisien, wnder Hajor Gaedo, WO,

of another assigmment, I was not aware who coeupled the

IN FHSTINONT VENRBOP, I offix my signsture on thie.7 AR day
of Ootober 1948, st the Ottty of Mamila, Philippines. ;

Jg ¢ ﬁgﬂ/ 0 M&Mﬂ-—*




B APTIDAFWILE. S

| ' ~ DECLASSIFIED
| REPUBLIC COF THB ) P
PHILIFPINES — _
.| PROVINCE OF ILBIL® ) N

1, JUSE DINGGONG, married, o aze, Filicluno citizen, aa
ex<ist Liout., M8, 0-25829, a resident of Il01il3 City, after
having teen duly sworn ta 4 accordins to law, 4o herehy depose
and asay: -

That, the ajanature appearins in the ecommandeerin: redelpt
of Mrs. MATILUE VDA. DE 9.1, .2:R, containinz 42 (foruy two) ¥ultas
of palay , dated 28 Morsh '42, js ay afnuine signmture,

That, 1 was aushorized ve aamsendesrsd palay and strer
aommadities Tar the used of the Higt DIVISION , USAFFL, hy Capt.
ZNTOHING ALI-AEN , whRo was then my seffor officoer in the Base 54,
6lst Diviaion, USAFFIY, (My records peryeininz L0 Lhe Base S-4,

61st Division, US.IFTB, wers lost durins the landing of the Japanese
Forces in Fanay, 16 apral '43,)

« I do horety swear that the fnfppmation get TOrth herein is
true to the best of sy knowledae wad heyiof.

LTl iy 7 8
&wﬁ.d’ uﬁﬁﬂbﬁ}w% -

L 10 ciia Tl 30D Ay eaaN. 10, batare g v E—
| 1946, at 1:11-3’;1:-“, ﬁ:lh. Phalicpina g AT o 4}’ pCla

a1 2 TSy - ' Dl ; L D a2
r1ted his Residense vertit) sate’ BLAGNL ACFianLE, “o88 DINgRRCs v

. 12
City, on Jamuary 53, 1946, 3+ A-1182686, issued av 1131
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Authority NND

B

ASSIFIED
\ DECL 07%

R URLI0 oF iR VRILYL PINEG
PREOTIIOE F 10110, CITY OF ILOILD ) Se 3a

al AFLIRAYAZ

 Ie Gexlos 3 Decconn, S/Sergeent, (D4) asy k76008, of legal age.
morried, sad 8 yeaideat of Jledlo Oily, eftsr RAVILE been duly swerp o age. .
acrding %0 1w, deone cnd sey , ¥ WA SOl

i T duow i, Tgoeclo AGinTe, 8 BALive of sjuy, Sare, @ posegEs .

nn;éﬁ Tincheater Sbotgun, 12 geuges Hoe 350547 eoverved T liccnse 1ice
L9050

That on Jarch 5, 19A2 his vinohester shotgun ves corsndeered iy
GEATY under Pilindpe ronstamilary reesi i Mo, 1045, and neme ves
turred over %o fieut, colwe for proned disvosition, Rt 1 ")
laxy recmirt Moe 10024K lamied upre adixye Was iy gemine sipetize wile
I e & duly Sclgeant ip the office uf"Fl_' Srgrinaial Inecetoe, #0, Tlalle' . |
baicre the MM mqﬂ" : J . ry i :

ostoher 1% 83 oamy Deliado, Tioide CIWs. .

f: PITNES visy r, 1 herewnto affix iy algnwame this Mwiﬁ‘:
" - .._'r;'l 1 o1 [ - R '11... b
[ W L. Aol -

o ' B — |



: =I5 |

D STATES OF AMR | DECLASSIFIED |
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA | [ : ED
COMONEALTH OF THE mu.lpplrﬂ*sg 8. 8) Authority NN) BG3 078
CITY CF ILOILO ) o

——

&
I, PRINO M, DOREZA, an Officer of tfie Philippine Army, of.legal
age, Filipino, and actually assigned to/the 2nd Ordnance M, Co. Ps A,
10 hereby declare and affim after hwmghm sworn according to laws

Thet 1 commandeercd from Mr, Manuel G, Azacla at la Paz, City of
Ilollo, on or about the month of Februsry 19%2, one DYNAMO generator
bearing the trade mark of zt“uﬂtinahﬂmg, with 110 volts, AC capacitys

That 1 ecammot recall the urin}" nmnht;r and model of said generator

That 1 commandeered ;ﬂd fenerator the auvthority and order
(1]

of Gen, Bradford Ch
m'l’:* ' J

} Division Cepmander of the 6lth

legal ¢ ceipt to tlhie owmer of the
wu;mmummﬁu,_ y Tlollo 0}
K |
(S ml t ’
sﬂ?’iﬂﬂ %‘L =

-

Ppines this of Ap 1946,
No., A=17261% 3 iﬂﬁm’lﬂ-ﬂ 7 i

=




DECLASSIFIED —

L , Authori
COMMONWEALTH OPF THE PHILIRPINES i ority NWD 52078 j
8.8. S
CITY OF ILOILO )

AFFPIDAYI?®?

I, VICENTE BELLC 0-43107, 1st Lieut. Inf. of legal age, married,

residing ln La Paz, Iloile City, after having been duly sworn to
according to law, hereby depose and say; | ,

1. That I was the ME. Officer, 63rd Inf. 6lst Division, Panay,

<+ That on 17 Dec. 1541, the CO 63rd Inf. Regt. Lieut. Col,

Maclenan ordered me to commendeer trucks for the use of the sald
regiment.

oe That on 1& Dec, 1941, I personally ecommandeered the truck

T=-1UsbU belonging to Mr. MARIANO TIONKO for the use of the &3rd’
Inf. hegt.

o« That the truek wag 4§ ally good condltion when it was
commandeered. ek i

1948 in La Paz, Iloile Clty.

y of

3 Ly Tied™ Bty

é”gr/ “ﬂf}%"’]ﬁ“‘lf‘ W waflure_
rféiw;{__i,f-m;‘-__,d , HU

, =7 .
J SYBSCLIBED AND SWORN to before me this 24" _aayor
| Lo 1945. e exhibited his residence certificate M@, .4

d'tanyﬂdﬁﬁfwitnilp Cigyj9Pebruary 20, 1946.

In WLITNEGS HERNOP, I hereunto affix my signature on this Jdth

ary

A fi}:/ ,;ZP/ o At a3 A
£ i : é 4
pag Wl PV
//’;?ﬁ! /

[oie révls.



rugy CLASSTFIED —
o NAD BE2a75 ]

AFFIDAVIT

I, Florentino G. Armonio, of legal age, and resident of
‘the Municipality of Culasi, Province of Antigmg, Philippines,
after having been duly sworn to in accordance with law, here-
by depose and say:

That, being a Reserve 9fficer, PA, I was called to active
duty during the War and waos inducted into the USAFFE with the
rank of Captain on 29 Decamber 1941 at Camp Hernandez, Dingle,
Iloilo, by then Col, Juan C, “uimbo;

That, after my induction, I was subseguently designated
S5-4, 1lst Bn, 6lst Regiment: Asst. S-4 65th Infantry Regiment;
and Procurement Officer, BWM, all of the 8lst Division;

That as Asst. S84, apnd at the same time procurement Of-
ficer, of the 85th Regiment, I procured from Mrs. Remedios

M. Opinion or Eugﬂuung_ Antique, on 17 March 1942 Two Hundred-

Seventy (270) Cavunes of Palav at the agreed price of Two and
Eu/}.i}ﬂ Pesoa P2,.50) pgg ﬂﬂ"'ﬂ.:{: .

g That I issued to said Mrs. Remedios M. Opinion a receipt
duly signed by me and boating o commandeering authority duly
signed by Col. Lope Quiel, then Adjutant General, 6lst Divilsion,
for the aforementioned 270 cavanes of palay which were turned
over %o the S-4, 85th Regiment, for use of that unit.

I8 WITHESS WHEREOF; I gigned npme this / “day of
M.lm,até_@,mtq s
i & o
HENTLHO G.

Subseribed and sworn to before me this _/Z day of %
1946, at San Jose, Aatique, ==

i W

5’#;‘}% <
S8 &, VILAVERT
Rezister of Deeds
Province of 4Antique,

This Off ice has RO

N -




Authority NWD 5% % 078

DECLASSIFIED J S~ Ll — LFS

REPUBLIC OFTHE PHILIPPINES
PROVIRCE OF ILOTIO
MUNICIPALITY OF ALIMODIAN ...J 58

AFFIDATVIT

I, MANUEL A. ANINO, Filipino, of legal amo, marriod
and vresidcnt of the muniocipality of Alimodian, provingce of
Ilollo, Philippings, after having been uly sworn to agrord-
ing %o law doposo and say;

That on ov abant Derombor 24, 1941, afier my @intistion
50 %he USAFFE, I w%as 4aetanhed °rom my %ompany (0" Co,
1%Bn. 6371 In® Rog%, 612t Div. USAFFE, assisned that %ime
at Camp Hovtnanioy, Dingle, Iloilo.) I. was temporavily
statloned that timg at g%a Barbarva and our immeilate Of fincrw

in charge over ug was Lt. Martil)

That wo wore ggsi 4 to oampalgn 1r tho 4ifforent
towns in Dﬂnnggtiagi'izzughg gsopmanieoring of gll kinds
of trucks anq automobilos with the sald Offigor Lt. Martil;

That on ov about tho 4ate above-mentioned, in the
Munisipality of Mole, Ileile, vhen I was with L%, Mawtil,

he eommanicoreq , tynek (FARGO) belonging to Catalina
Doningo and the ﬂﬁfbuspn;ﬂing rogeipt duly 1ssued;

That from <y . gaid 4ok was commanigoved
1% was useq fop uflﬁ:ﬂ*p?&;uﬂ by Lt. Martil, I myself

Poing thoe Arivew of the gatq vohinlop

That the aboye never roturned to 1ts
| ~voforred truck was :
owner Cataling teo it was commgndcored €111
the prosont, Dominge ®ram the 1ate

i gl

IN WITNESS WVHEROF harounte set my signatuve this’
2nd day of Octobor, 19iﬁ'a§ Alimadian. Tloiles Philippines,

e G,

SUBSCRIBED ang sworn to bofore me this 2n1 Wy of
O0tobo®, 1946 at Alimodian, Iloilo, Afiant oxhiditod te
mo his Rexm, Cort, No. (7~ (33:20 £F od at n41lan,

Iloilo, On Vanua,, J_;:m _
L= .
.;uitfgﬂ':i the g'“"
of Alimodian, Ilolle

]

i

EXHIBIT



T LY .
| ﬂ EP DECLASSIFIED

REPUBLIC'OF THE PHILI FLUES ) 5. 5. Authority NWO BE5 075

1loilo ui:i,r ) -

AXEIRDANIE

I, AGUSTIN VALLIVILGU, Be 5g%, F5, 478811, un duty with tho 6th M
(Fa), of logal ago, Fillilno eitizon, marriea ana s rosidont of the City
of Iloile, Yrovinee of lloile, Fhilippinos, after being duly sworn adcording
to law, dopoBes and oay: -

That on Jan. 1943, I was asslgned as Clork of tho Rogilmontal
Finange Oxricer, G64%h Int., USAFIE and remainod with tho same uait
untll the surroader of the USAFFL forees here in ranay .

That on Maroh 19, 194:, I was instruotoq by Lt. ENPESTAN, Rogl-
montal Flnanoe Oflicor, 84th Int USANVL, %0 colloot all she receipts
or tho goo(s which woro commandered by various ofricess from their
© owners Ior preparation of voushers , add to issuo a tonporary re-

solpt in llou of the recoipts taken. - '

That 1 compliod with tho Instruetions of my superior officor
and collosted Irom ir. Lim Plong Slong, ownor of Uriental bakory,
Kalibo, Capiz tho rocoipts signed by Lu. ¥altor iinkle 1in sho amouns
of POb.11; ZIrom Mr. Lim Chong Kim, owner of Lim Vhong Kim Store, of
Kalibo, Caplz, the recoipts of soveral officers in sho total amount
of ¥811.66, and issund thom n temporary rocoipt in liou of the ro-
ooipts takon by mo, '

That the recoipt which I issucd to tho % above namoq
in lieu of the originnl resoipts which shoy surrendor to i
my own receipt and the mignature sppoaring thorein ias Ry true and
gonulne slgia .

That the saila roooipts which woro received by mo from he » Mtmmy
above nARGd persons for the Rogimeatal offiscer, 64th Lur Us ey,
tho amount Tor puymont was not received rrom the Livision Finance
Orrieor, 6lst Vivision , USAFYE; wad furthemmore, that those ro-
goipts Wore buried in the Rogilmomtal Soocurity Area of the 64th Inr,
80mOWLOXO 1A the mountalns of Tapas, Capis upon orders from the
Kogimeatal Fiuanoo OfTIicor, 64th Inx. UNAFYVE.

I WrmiEss WEEIROF, I have herowito signod this affidavit at Iloi),
Iloilo, Yhilipplnes on wuis waa day of May 1947, uity,

B¢ Bgte, IS
u“m-{ éth W (PA)

SUSBORIBEY ANL SWOKN %o beorore mo by the affimns, U, bgs. Agaat i,
Valaiviese, 4780ll, ab Iloile uity, Iloile, Philippinos ou Shin uug day
of :::{ 1947, AXLlan® having shown his Ko#idense Uertiricate o,

L

, iseued at Ilello Giwy, I 81 Maroh 1w4v,

“WORARY PUBLIC - —

Dese NOs j}' Until sl bll-lnyh-nr 1g‘$__

4



)

Ildilo City ) Authority NWOD FEZ 078
AFFIDAVIT g

REPUBLIC OF "Mi, Puzh*!Elums ] 8. 8. w DECLASSIFIED ‘

I, RIZALINO G. 50, of logal age, married, Filipino eitizen and a re-
gident of the manicipality of Libacao, Province of Capiz, Philippines, ;
beinz first duly sworn upon oath, deposcs and say:

That on 1 bec., 1941, I was inducted into the services of tho USAFIE
as SERGLANT, and assigned with the G-2 Section, Livision Hqrs., 6lst Div,
USAFFE. That I d4id not surrender to the Japanese Impecrinl Forces, but
instead Jolned the “eaistance Movament, Panay Guerilla Forces, later
gallod the 6th Military Uistriet (Guerilla )jon 22 Aug. 1942 and assigned
as UIGIT COMMANDER, of LIBACAO UNIT. That on 1 Sept. 1942, I was Commi-
sasionod as THIKL LIKUT., and remainced with the same unit. Thad on 15 Novw.
1942, I was agaln transffercd and assigned as Junior Off,., " G (Co.,
64th Inf., and was promoted to SECOHL LIEUI. on 1 Lec. 1942. That on
5 Jan 1943, I was asslgned on buty with the G-2 Seetion, Livision Hgrs.,
6lst DLivision under Capt. Fedorico L. Salecdo untll 2 Fob. 1943 when I
was assignoed as Adminigstrative and Aset. Combat Int. Officer of the same
anit wntil 31 March 1943, That on 1 April 1943, I was agaln asulgned as
Combat and Counter Int, (fficer, G-2 Seetlon, 61t Livisiom Hgrs., under
Ma jor Fedorico L. 5alecdo until 30 Seopt. 1945. That on 1 uvet., 1943, I
was transiferrod and agsigned with the 66th Inf., as Kegimental Ing.,
officer (5-2) under L%. Col. V. Grasparil until 3 April 1945. That on
1 bec. 1943, I was promotoed to FINST LIEUT. and promoted %o CAPTAIN on
1 Mareh 1945. Uhat on & April 1945, I was asslgned as Kdgimental Plang
and Trog. Officer (5-3) é6th Inf. until 20 May 1945 and again assigned
as Regimental Int. Officor (S-2) 6oth Inf. from Bl May 1945 until
15 Junc 1945 under 1Lt, Col. B. Villasis. That I was processed and pg-
turned to full militery control on 1b May 1940 at Capiz, Capiz. Thatg I
was ackivated into the 524 Inf (PA) mnd assigned as Batbtallion Int., (frige
(S-%) 18t Bn. 534 Inf (PA) under Major C. Carroon on June 16, 1945 unti]l %
15 Jan. 1946. That on 16 Jan 1946, I was assigned as Aclg. CO " p (o,
1st Bn., 924 Inf (PA) under Major “rnesto Golez: keprocossed 31 Jan 1944
at Camp Hornandoz, Lingle, Iaailo, by RPU Toam No. 7; DEMOBILIZED,
31 March 1946,

That in my various apgg dutios onumerated above, I came 1,
tact with various officors iﬁxuﬁnlgﬂtad mon and saw them on ﬂﬂTﬂrai v

ocoassions slgn thoir names on army papoers.

That I have examined tha andering receipts and voushery gyy_ ]
mitted by Lim Pleng Siong o tho AFWESPAC , foam Ko, $-1, Iloilo by
1 g fanalh
Iloile CG1%y which are follows:
(1) P000ipt dated 18 Jan 1942 signed by Lb. Salvador Tubelyejs,
(2) Rocolipt dated 16 Jan 1947 signed by L. Alfonso Amdda,
3) iﬂﬂﬂiﬂt dated 16 Jan 1947 signed by Lt. Sabldong
4) "eceipt dated 19 Jan 1942 signed by Lt. Mamuel Vivinagpae
lig 5 i
{g} - e0ipt dated 21 Jar, 1942 signed by Capt. L. Albalade)o
(6) Mecelpt dated 22 Jan 1942 signed by Lb. Carles Gregorig
(7) Jecelpt dated 37 Jan 1942 signed by Lb. Florensio Palggigg
(5) Eaaodst daved 1o oy 1oas sigoed by Lt o Aluamn o
(10)Eoceipt dated 27 Feb 1942 signed by Capt. L. Albaladejo
that 1 have seen the commandering recelpts or vousherg and the
pgicers whio qignﬂd $hoir names thercon as hoerolnabove 8tated ang '
ganugniﬂﬂ“ pid 1dentify the pignatures appearing thereon pg astually
gigned bY the above persens and to the best of wy knowledge, the recedps
a

PEESS WhbiEUFy I have hereunto signed this gf

£1i
, Philippines, on this 224 day of May 1947, Gavit at Iloile

—_

.. ]
P 5 i -
v L2 J

. 77
RIZALIKO @, a0

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN %o before me by the affiant, Risaline g,

VoY e} -



L \H\. (7 ¢ DECLASSIFIED
( ﬁiﬂa?it u:ﬂ. Kizaline G. So ) | Authority N ﬁc—ﬁ 07T

f-. . l“-ﬂﬁu E ol VP —

at Iloilo City, Iloilo, Philippines, on this 2Zd day of May 1947. Affiant
having shown his Reslidence Certilicate lio. A—E&‘Iﬁé?h issued at Kalibo,

ﬂapia on 1 April,T1947. _
L S s L

HGEARY PUBLIC |
Until 31 “ecember 1949

pocs Nos A3 ; e
Pabo Lo«

Book HNo. /
series uf'-:i‘ﬁ?_



Authority NWD BF3 078

DECLASSIFIED J ' 2

~GERTIFICATE.

I, LORENZO N, CORTUNA, of legal age, married, at present
reslding in Valeria 8t., Iloilo City, hereby certify that the
v following is true and correot:

That I Joined the Philippine Constabulary in 19285, and
in 1936 when the Fhilippine wag oreated, I was trang-
ferred theredo; that as of the outbreak of the war, I was a
Sgt Inf, and was under the direct supervision of Lope Quial,
Hn,]nr In-t. niltl‘iﬁt ﬂm.r; EHHD] P"] u..p Dllﬂlﬂ.ﬂ, n‘ll‘l
that I wee then assigned to the Offlice of the District Commane
der, 6"MD, Camp Delgado, Iloilo, and when the war broke oug,
Major Lc!: Quial was promoted to Lt Col Inf, Adgutant General
of the & tﬂitﬂﬂairgmdlmprﬁntﬂhhlhr!nm
made Chief Clerk of the Adj CGeneral's Office, 6lst Div USAFFE;

That in the execution of my duties, I became familiar with
the formulation of policies regarding the procurement of sup-
. plies by the USAFFE ag well as the preparation of procurement
recelpt forms;

That I also beocame familisr with the signatures of many
officers and enlisted men on mccount of having seen them on

many official thru the Office of the Adjutant
General, 6lst m.ﬁ'ﬁ%: RO

That I have examin ng papers submitted by
Mp Cesar D Evangelista :‘: %:;:1%::15.!: glﬁla Branch Offlces

Reoelpt signed by Lt umﬁ Quial and P D Esguerrs,

Major Inf, dated 23 1942
- Recelipt sligned by Lt G Quial and Major F E Esguerra,
dsted 23 ];ﬂnl Lope _

Certificate dated April 1042 signed by Capt N E Avancensa

That I recognize the signatures thereon to be the genuine

M.Eu:tml of Ls C or P D Esguerra, and Capg
N E Avangena, and ﬂ ::.h:l' of :;’ udgment and ‘Illil.l:r. the

eald receipts and gertificate are authentio;

That I know thet My Cesar Evangelista owned a rice mill
in Pumangss and that he was milling palay fﬂl'thilmli also
know of the arrangement ﬂur.ﬂ he was to mill Aruy palay and
haul the elean rige from his mill in Dumangas to the Amy bo-
a in Fototan; as to the charges he was to be pald for the
milling and hul.l.lnq. 1 can not remember,

IN WITNESS TO THE TRUTH OF THE ABOVE STATEMENTS, I hereon

gign this :ﬂ-unu this 18t day of July 1947 in the City of
Iledilo,

i nm.uﬂur :ﬂ .2-
by $88 B ol tat s 0t T of




DEELASSIF]ED_" 1

Authority NWO B2 075 K

RePUBLIC OF THE PUILIPPINES ) H'
CITY UF MANILA ) 88,

AFRIDAVITY

1, JUALULN B, HIDALEU, Eﬂ;nﬁh AP ASN 0-1571, of legal age and
presently assigned as fusmior Aide-to His Excellency the President of the
H‘Lﬂippmua, after being duly eworn according to law do hereby depose mnd
say:

That I was the Executive Officer of the Blst FA Regiment, 8lst
Division USAFFE ynder Lt. Col. Woodbridge from the time of its organizati sy

“Ph‘ﬂllmmuﬂ-rnfthu?inmu-ljnﬂ.mnanmlﬂlny 13424

That the Regimental Hgs authorized commsnderesing things such ag
h-‘lf'bld wires for sector defenses, horses, carabaosa, bulls and garts for
heuling ammuni tions, food supplies and the like;

That Capt. G, A. Abellsds fi, Battery Commander Hys & Hys Battery,

rd B of our Hegiment, the Blet P, mesd ~e—swimanan
covwor USTENSeS and OTHer things %I-dlﬂ. by his Battery, PESRCI9res.for hia ' 4

Tegoloan, Misamis Oriental where the unit is assigned.

—

Further deponent sayeth not.
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# g 4“ puthorty N3 y

AFFIDAVIT

ﬁ/) V‘v 1. FLORENTINO VISITACION, Filipino citizen and resident of
the ﬂﬁi of II:Luila, Philippines, being fhret duly svorn to, de-
pose aay

That on 1 January 1942 I wae eployed by the USAFFE Port
Quartermaster, Iloilo City, as bookkeeper, voucher clerk and ty=-
pist, and continued in this capaoity until 15 April 1942; that

was under the direet supervision of Mr. Francis A. Hal‘agy
Chief Clerk of the Port Quartermaster, Capt. Prud - 8
F.8, and under the over-all supwrvision of Capt. G. P, Koat, Adt-
ing Port Quartermaster.

!hntdtnth-m“wmdur of les by the

Port Quartermaster, an official receipt “:DE.ME the Jﬂu

:rﬂl? n:mn inv h“ t:n:.h. a.-ﬂuwgn Elf‘uum' ;M receipt
oloes ver or

and three eoples of the invoices Sor the preparation and issue

L]

ﬂlﬂummn{lnt; that the original receipt was never
dgsued until the i had been
Bod in G very or H.ﬂlnmuu

That at the time the t and involoes were
delivered, the Quartermas ..'3.'35 iseue to the claimantg
.Mﬂ'wa:ﬁ the inveoices, and that

8. |
{0 e v
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I, Carles Peocarpo presently statiored st Camp Pelpada,
Tloilo City, hereby cerfify that the follorine f= firue bog
corrects

That sirce 192F T have served continuovsly in the Philip-
pine Constabulary until the Japanese i.l*'rva!!ﬂn of Farey on the
16 April 1942, T wae pssipned to the l1o1ln Comreny, P, Wy
duty in this eomrany wee as Firearms Cle rik, '

Thet in Fovember 1041 T knew that the Frovineial Coverner

Tomas Confersor, issued orders to the Previreiasl Inepecter, Ihfnr
Rafesel Aleals y to pather firearme from Tledle Proviree Top
the TEAFFF, iijnr Raefael Alcala pave orders to Capt, ?]!:alﬂn,
€O of the Iloile Company, FC, te esteblish an orgenizetion in
the City of Tloilo to eollec! firesrms from the civilfens. Cert, |
Fligalde established g yecedvine section in Tleilo and informes
thet Chiefs of Police of variovs towns to entmit te hip 14sts
of firearme in the possession of the civiliens in their corres.

onding towre, Aftey Capt. Flizalde recedved g 14t of firearms
¥ra- 8 Chief of Folice, he would issue ordere for the Chief of
Folice to eolleet these firearme, After the firesrme vere col-
lected, he érsonally or Lt, Meximo Tabets wenld ko te the town
and recdve the Weapons from the Chief of Folice end frrve ree
ceipts Tor same,

In November 1941 1 wag pssipned to the Firearm Fection of
the Iloilo Comrany, P8, hv Capt, Fliselde, dutier were to
receive the fireprme frem Capt. Fl1zelde snd It, Tabets, check
the fireerms to geq 3¢ they were in working condition end to re-
cord seld weapons in s journal, {ssue receipts for seid wesons
anc: 10 _tUTh over said wespons fo the Ordnsnce Officer, Tt, oler,
Lt, Golez in turn woylg turn ovey the weaporns to the P1et Divi.
.!“! UEAFFF, After veceiyin and cheeking the weepers #nd re-
cording them, T would make cut proper receipts ir the ewmer's |
names, These receipts wonld be sipned Cpats Flizalde or It,

Tabete and then they vould bhe issned to the Crief of Plies tp
distribute them to theqy Proper ownersl

lﬂl'l' ch'!l-t“l of It‘l]_ 1ee war mewed +o the I'Fﬂl"fl"‘pll
huild!t‘g of Jaro] 1In ﬁmﬂ%mr Firearm tectior wWar moved
or¢ around the 1ot of Appil, 1047 our fectien moved to
Fte, Parbere. In Ste, Barbers o)1 o cur records were burned
B nas vhon sooihaty they would met #4137 inte the hends of the
Japanes n Peney wee 1rveded on 1€ Apri) 1042,

8/ Carlos Deccamno
t/ Cirtos DEOCANTO

T hereby certify that the Pope elng stat te vere made by
e perty Signirg the same volunt nvone Féh
:F l::“'t 1047, velu lr;‘]ynt.fﬂ" ..H:lil th day

:f'lll!g;: E; 3:53#:
Certifying Claims

olle Brape fee

CERTIFITY TRUF Copy,

&

'y
' {' F.~% B -F = ¥ i g i
FNRIOUF £, OaPcrs
Certifying Claims Invegtipator
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Antonio P, Fla, being first duly sworn on oath deposes
and says: That I am a Spanish citizen, of legal age and a
resident of Iloilo City;

That on February 1, 1942, I was employed by the Port
Quartermaster, Ileilo City, in charge of all procurements
by the Port Quartermaster under Col, Carter MacLenan, Port
Quartermaster, and later under Major Richard Jones; That
sometime during March 1942 I requisitioned 5,000 new empty
sugar sacks from Mr, Benjamin Javellana for the purpose of
Supplying rice thru the Port Quartermaster te the Leper
Colony located near Palawan Island; That the usual and

average market e for new sugar sacks in Iloile City at
that time was F,40 to P.50 per sack, and second hand ones

Fal5 to P,20 each; That I had made other purchases of this
type of merchandise, and was familiar with the market price;

That prior to serving with the USAFFE, I was the Manager
of the local branch of Firestene Tire & Rubber Co, (P, I.),
fnd at the present time am reopening the Cebu and Ileile
branches of this Company.

the
b n?ﬂl this 13th day of December, 1945, in City

(A R A

Subseribed and before me this 13th '
December 1948, sworn to before day of

/s/ Boynton Kamb

/t/ BOYNTON KauB
2d Lt,, JAnD
Ill'l’lltint.u' 0fficer

GERTIFIED TRUE COPY:

ﬁ e ) YL
CONRAD R LE

Leagal: Investigator
Claims Service, AFWESPAC
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Washington, D. C.
1 October 1947

A-F-F-1-D-A-T-I-T

I, CARTER R. McLENNAY, Colonel, Cavalry, United Sstates Army, ASKN 05750,
being first duly sworn, do depoee and say!

At the time of the outbresk of the war between the United States pf
America and the Nipponese Empire, the Philippine Army wee deficient in many
essential materiale, Conspicuous among these were automotive fuele and
lubricents. Imredietely upon the outbreak of war recuisitions were made on
all of the firme dealing in supplies of this nature, &né to the best of my
knowledge andé belief sl]l aveilable automotive fuels and lubricante were
taken for the use of the Armed Services.

To the best of my recollection the Chief Procurement Agent of the
6ist Divieion, Philirpine Army, wes Major Fran, subsequently Lieutenant
Colonel and pcnaibly'bulgngl, whose firet name of initial ecannot now he
recalled, an officer of the Philippine Rezular Army. This officer was the
Livieion Quartermagter, and it is believed that moet eupvlies required for
the Divieion were acquired by him or his agents.

I wee detailed as Favigation Head COfficer, lloile, Iloile, Panay
Ieland, and as Favigation Hesd Officer procured a coneiderable quantity of
suoplies, :1 do not now recell whether any supplies were gequired by my
office from the Caltex (Philippines) Incorporated.

I have examined the statement of the Caltex Company BUpearing as an
inclosure to letter, Feadquarters, Philippines-Ryukyus Command, Of<ice of
the Chief of Claime Service, and believe the claim stated therein is Jjuet
end correct. The only method of determining ite absolute accurcay that 1
can think of is to compare the statement with the company's accounts ag of
the date of declaration of war. If the account does not exceed the matep-
ials shown by the commeny's inventroy of that date it i=s undoubtedly cor-
rect, for practicelly all automotive fuels and lubricants, together yith
the necessary conteliners for their trensportation wera requisitioned by
USAFTE immediately after the declaration of war.

_ Almost immediately upon the declaration of war currency disappeared
being presumably hoarded by the people, and checks or other negotizable :
instrumentes could not be cashed. This sititation continued for & coneiderable
veriod until the local Provincial Government hegen printing ite oyn currency.
During that period very few supvlies were reid for in cash, and checks, being
nofi-negotiable, were unacceptable. ZXven after the printing of currency wﬁg
started only a comparitively emall amount of the indebtedners incurred by

the Armeé Forces on the Ieland of Panay were Pald for, either by cash nru

- i a
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vcheck, The reaeson for thie, many firme, came particularly in the caese of the

" larger firms, (whose bugineess had ceased as a result of the war) expressed &

"~ deeire not to be paid, preferring that an obligation of the United States
continued to exist until after the hazard of an invasion by the Nipponese had
terminated. It is strongly sugpected that Galtex is one of the firme that pre-
ferred to "carry" an oblization of the United States than to be paid.

/s/ Carter R. Mclennan
/t/ CARTER R, McLENNAN
Colonel, CAV,

Snhacribed and eworn to before me this 2nd day of Uctober 1947.

/ef A, J. Bouch

Jt/ A. J. ROUCH

: Lt. Colonel, AGD
0=-242736

Eecorder, Ammy Hetiring Board

Certified True Copy:

Tjsﬁt TECDORO M, TALUBAN
laimes Investigator
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Washington, D. C. if.|
1 October 1947

]

L ReF-F-1-D-A-V-1-T

: . . Cavalry, United States Army, ASN 05750,
CARTER R. licLENNAN, Colonel, ¥
:lllj.niI’firl'l'- duly sweorn, do depose and say:

“mu_'fmuuthrﬂkofthumbﬂmnthnﬂniMEuhanf
| ; .ﬂmnppmuhpm. the Philippine Army was deficient in many
sential materials. Conspicuous among these were automotive fuels and
;:brimu.' I-di-ulrupmthmthmknfmﬂquinum were made on
murth-ﬂ.rummlinmppuuafthumm, and to the best of my
and belief all available sutomotive fuels and lubricants were.
taken for the use of the Armed Services.
’!amhﬂdqmuuuﬁmmmwwnrth-
6lst Division, Philippine Army, was Major Fran, subsequently Lisutenant
Colonel and possibly Colonel, whose first name or initial cannot now be

1 was detailed as Kavigation Head Officer, Iloile, Iloile, Panay
jsland, and as Navigation Head Officer procured a considerable quantity of
supplies. 1 do not now recall whether any supplies were acquired by my
office from the Caltex (Philippines) Incorporated.

I have examined the statement of the Caltex Company appearing as an
inclosure to letter, Headquarters, Philippines-fyukyus Command, Office of

of Claims Service, and believe the claim stated therein is just
t. The only method of determining its absolute mccuracy that I l
can think of is to compare the statement with the company's accounts as of
the date of declaration of war. If the account doez not exceed the mater-
jals shown by the company's inventroy of that date it is undoubtedly cor-
rec ractically all automotive fuels and lubricants, together with

the containers for their transportation were requisitioned
Mtﬂ; after the declaration of war, o




T ] e e

Sabscribed and sworn to before me this

"!JF‘ -
A ' H\%
) c-—-
1”"_: b
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CARIER R.
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Washington, D, C.
1 October 1947

p-F-F-I-D-A-V-I-T

gworn, do

of the outbresk of the war between the United States of

et se Empire, the Philippine Army was deficient in

and PP_ ﬂum’-‘“"“ among these were automotive fuels and
ately upon the outbreak of war requisitions were made on

lubricants. Immedi jing in supplies of this nature, and to the best of my

all of the .’Iw] jof all available automotive fuels and lubricants were

e L 4 recollection the Chief Procurement Agent of the
Philippine Army, was Major Fran, subsequently Li
é1st Division, bly Colonel, whose first Ilullrl’ﬂl' initial gnnu:u::“;
; “P“' of the Philippine Regular Arny. This officer was the
mrmlhd_ on Quartermaster, and it is believed that most supplies required for
i.:f;irili" were acquired by him or his agents.

I was detailed as Navigation Head Officer, Iloile, Iloilo Fanay
1sland, and as Navigation Head Officer procured a umidmbll’qmut, of
supplies. 1 do not now recall whether any supplies were acquired by my
office from the Caltex (Philippines) Incorporated.

Mm..::; 3 élthr, Headquarters, Fhilippines-Ryukyus Command, Office of

: - mmu Service, and believe the clalm stated therein is just

o m-.f " hl:.l;f method of determining its absolute acouracy that I

the date of declaration of s i LT . Mg iy

o Mgl s o . war. If the acoount does not exceed the mater-

e ompany’s inventroy of that date it is undoubtedly gor-
’ ¢ally all automotive fuels and lubricants, together with

oould not be cashed, Thi
riod until the . ® situation econtinued for a consi
losal Provineial Govermment “?‘ printing its own “:."“hi'

that peried
Moh-nagetisdis, mm:pmu were paid for in cash, and checks, being

started only a comparity small amoun indebtedne Hmrm,“
g g vely t of the #s i :
| uuhlmumﬂﬂmdrw.ﬂ“-rhru-hu?
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I, Oscaor Ledesma, C-238L7 Captdin, <<, Philirpine
Army, herebyc ertify to tiie following: =

e

+hat I an at present the vommendlng Yfficer of the 5th
wuartermaster “ompany, Philispine «rmy.

IThot at the outhreak of war «ith Japan and continuing

‘until the invasion of Panay in =pril 1942 I was vonmand ing

officer of the 8lst wartermester —ervice “ompany. In that
position I was acquainted with the acguisition of property
by the UsAFSL in the Iloile area. oSuprplies of food needed
by the armed forees were peld for or a regular procir ement
basis rather than peiny requisitioned without compensation.
In some instances, especially cersal, some of the supplies
were not pald in full, Wwenerel “aynbWeti, the “omanding
beneral, authorized the correndeerins of wmotor vehisles in
Fanmay, which was done under liajor “1wW¥or, “ormand ing Uffiger
of the 6lst ‘runsportation sattalion, wkG is now decessed,
Lajor (then lst Lt,) frencisco ». Offefaria, of @loilo,
Tloilo, Operations Crficer of the 61lst ‘ransportstion bat-
talicn was in setive charge of the comrandesiing. Uleets
£ vehleles belonging to the Iloilo Trensportation “ompany,
' HESENnfer curs, and Spara IJLJ.I"'EE- Wers

i
ol . K

LT LPPez, clivilisn o
teken by Toalis, deceipnts for these vehleles were 1ssued
and some payments thereson were nade by Uow#lb. “oue ownsrs
recelved Dayment: ir full apnd others recsived only pertisl
payments, but the ma Jority were paid. <+hese payosnts v ere
node 1n eccordence vith the valuations set on the Veliides,
fifgured onh a commsreial basle, by 8 Blady UF AFFHAISAL ap-
pointed for ti.at nurnose: +here were three menbers on

thig Yoard: I_Hsﬂr*{;f‘ ,!ﬂi‘iu,, wol., u.,rél-ﬁ'ﬂ-_lDLlﬂEi, an alerican
apmy officer, und a third verson whom I cannot recell. Ibds
Loard issved en apspalan stotement on the veluation, ang

a notvation was made on tie repalipt as to peyment. 1n adai-
tion to vehic las, rusl lpae—amd oll) was rejulstloned for
the “rmy under Lol. 3 t\ﬁ'&f

T I IJr-E { d[::= a8 [.r“ll-, 61&t "'Jiv;, Fafak'y
8% M. T.%e, PA, Cant, Frimo Defiza, who wes in the ‘ransporsa-

= we B
tion ~ection of tle 6lst nivision and is now with the Teh
Replacement “attalion, may slso have knovledse Of other facts,

“hat I was officer with the guerrilla force on Fauay
nndersvol, Ia‘u&,:d a0l served as Youranding CLTiser of ths
suartermaster Jatislion from ““npil 1S4, to Lareh 1945, g
hed the responeibllity or sroeuring cereals for all the
guerrilis fores on the {sinnd. wyupnlies other then cereals
were progurad throuuk La 3or nh{.'.l-‘_-léa'i’?’]? uyce, “istrict LUBT L& e
naster until sarek, 1945, whken I succeeded him. Lalor Luyeo
reteined all nis Tecords wren I succeeded hili. _He yas e
cent 1y living in 1a £az, Iloile. kajor ﬂum{}:&‘ WES
Uistriet wusrtermaster from useenber 1942 to PEDhteuber 1943
when he wes esptured. Lajor noces is now with tle £1i1irning
AT am nay be Etfit-iﬂllﬂﬂ B% Camp :ijl'l:,-_- S

J"I].'._'-[:l j.]._. t-]._E L-'Tl:,.' LL'.I't. ﬂj:" tLE. P_L]EJ:J.Iill:-' i-*l‘-.:'u-':-'--..-:]L 'f'l'_EI'
the orcanization 1o “wust 1942 most of the sg -

tiie fores were volunierily eontiibuted by ¢ 'viliapns
rno recelpls were siven. later, lLowever, be.inni i:; e
yeriber 1942 recelpts were lssuwed with tls unde: stundd p
thot payment would later bs nade. IL tle _rocure.epnt ot
esreals receipts for the supy llies wers 1issued nder te
supervision of tle vo ding Ufficers of thre fou o i s
nles under me. <he followin, served gs suel € Ol e P

M e.i0=3"




T ' |

e

T iéfb !

._u_-ftlja,: Jffjlﬁﬁ r

k H_.;;dl'lﬁr}ﬁ = E|I':|_':‘.-:Ln'ﬂ
L T ] i i

£ JivenclO =
l..,-.".dj't-- L1sto ffe 1Driﬂw}m 1s now with the .F “oupany
L. f::uz_*r*gS‘]Lt_ Tobito Yarajo, who is with 7th ueplascement
at ZAHAAGH fmch company colmander had seventean junior
J.;:n'.iiﬁ'llﬂn:-,-g handled the procurement and sotually signed
of Ticers 1'""4.‘-1_553 rapeint 8 were both typed and handwritten
rEﬂEiTtE'fiEE! thet a certein quantity of ceresl had been
and certl credit Prom a ngmed owner, which was chergeable
'}TDﬂ“reE---th vilitary bistrict. In some linstances the
t lftated the charge was to the Unlted ~tates. The
pts 2% ompeny commanders should still have in their
tlme r|;,‘h“5l,~L records they kept on this requisitioning.
, _.ﬂﬂih officers of tucticsl companies also procured
Lhe t::amuim_llﬁn the necessity arcse. at Tirst we were able
guéb for the cereals we ;.'guuured‘but later it was
to PE};ﬂr; to obtain then on credit end issue receipts,
peces s :
nti: antonlo u.l'ne{c-;n was & former comrmnding

oF Gk tre -uartemesster Satltallon end is now “ssistant
-foigiﬂﬂ (rdnance (fficer vith the 5th Crdnance fattalion
‘;i?gﬂmp JAnpley .

QOHHH
I e o
L]

i}
!
%

That “d

(oGD.) Oolad G. Lubkals
bepbain ()
Gli- S5th GG, {]E'.u.;

cubseribed and sworn to beiors me thls 16th day of
‘-._g_]_{'ust lglh:-"'

[ul:,n,._}q.:l .-'..'I‘.L-n.'nl.--—I--llj-ll:-| I-ll n'ELI-JI....H'—"IJ.J.I :T
Yaptaln, §+ G

CEATIFIED 1 HUG

1

pt.y Inf ., allo,
AgstJirector, “gam [5-0C
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CERPIFICATE

— S e G SRS R GRS e

Presidio of San Franecisco, Calif,
29 September 1947

I, RICHARD I, JONES, O 30 410, LteColonel, Infantry certify that
the following is true to the beat of my knowledge and helief's

That T was assigned as the Cormanding Officer, 1st Bn 8lst
Inf (PA) from 1 September 1941 to sbout 20 November 1941, On or
about 20 November 1841 the unit was moved to Magallon, Negros
Oceidental and it is believed that the accounts in subjest claim
:;:lrur & later period and are for units on Panay after 20 November
Lo ]

That from on or about 8 April 1942 to 16 April 1942 I was
the Post Quartermester, Iloilo, Panay, Philippine Islands. Prior
and after dates mentioned I was stationed at Bacolod, Negros
Ccoldental, Philippine Islends.

That most of these olaims appear to have been transacted
prior te my arriving in Ileile.

That I know that business was done with Cetlex and USAFFE
but as to amounts, items, cost, ete., I can make mno definite

izt B

Lt Colonel, Infantry
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I, Richard I. Jones, 0-29283%, Colcnel, Infaniry certify
that the following history of the operation of the Bacolod
Quertermaster Sub-Depot is true toc the best of my knowledge
and belief.

T NN N N E R EE R T E e I I BN N R

For the purpose of further clarifying the procedure end
method under which the Sub-depot cperated, the fcllﬂ'.;'iu& will
SEIVe 2

A Unit of, or any unit atteched to the Negros Force,
desiring any item would submit a prepsred reguisition end for-
ward it to Foree G- for consolidation and primary approval.
After consolidating it would be sent to the Sub-depot for final
approval and completion. Here it would be checked by the ware-
house section, emd if the item wes in stoek the reguisition was
filled. If the item was not in stock it would coms to the Pur-
chesing-Contracting Officer for sudit and assignment to one of
the suthorized Purchasing MAgents. This egent would then pro-
cure the item end at the same time meking a Furchase Receipt in
triplicate for the items This Furchase-Receipt gave the ven-
dor's neme, place of business, descripticn of the ertiele pur-
chased or commsndeered and the price asked, and signed by the
authnrlzad agent. {See Exhibit *D“ } Ih@ Bripﬂ set forth on the

went to t ndor, the dupliuat& to the narehuuaa Seo-
tion and the triplicate remained in the sgent's book. The dup-
licate was checked-by the waershouse section and certified that
the goods indicated thereon had been received by the Sub-depot
from the vendor.

The vendor with his copy of the F-R would then prepare
his bill, statement or invoice, placing thereon the certifi-
cate required as to peyment not being received, end that it was
a just and honest claim. c LILVOd W
the origi ;-.Mwwm

gorrect monetary Extansiun reqmeﬂ. uertificataa as to I‘EL‘-Eipt
and non-peyment gnd whether or pot the price was just end cor-
rect, and that the duplicate copy of the F-R duly certified by
the Warehcuse Section covering the requisiticn had been re-
ceived the the Audit Section. The Audit Section would then
isgue & Check-Receipt (See Exhibit "E") to the vendor for hig
invoices indicating thereon the name of the vendor, the number
and smount of eech invoice and the Chief Auditor's dignature.
The Audit Section would then prepare the proper US Government
Voucher which were sent to the Iurchasing-Contracting Officer
for finel approval and signature end correet certificetes on
vendor's involees. From the Furchesing-Contrascting Officer
They then went to the Finance Section for payment.

The vendor would present his Check-Receipt from the

4udit Section to the Finance Section and peyment would be made
and the secount closed.

fagFRE R Fa AR EANARARREREdARAEE R

hIFTE[;

NN B53078



Cars, trucks, motorecycles were handled in s slightly
different manner, OCapt., C. H. Smith and Er. Abad Santos and
the CO Wi Sub-Depot were the only parties authorized to coam-~
mendeer or requisition vehicles. Lor each unit teken a re-
ceipt in triplicate (Exhibit "I" )} was prepered listing the
type of vehicle, motor mumber, license number, céndition of
body, tires, &and eny other necessery information that would be
required by the Evaluation Board, to determine the value of
the unit. The original of this receipt went to the owner of
the vehicle, the duplicate of the Evaluetion Board, end the
triplicate remained in the agent's bock. (This board was just
starting to orerate at the time of the Jepenese invesion end

%- v car d cne m revel ad bean id for.) The
funetion of the Doard was to determi the v (a] vehi
cheek into 1 cwnerahi lie rt encumbrance

any kind end eny other pertinent informstion so that payment
when made would be to the proper partye

A APAREARERS R e R

/8/ Richard I. Jones
/t/ RICHARD I. JCIES
Colonel, Infentry
0=292839
Former Commanding COfficer
Bacolod Wuartermaster Sub-De

A THUE EXTHACT CCFY:

8/ Charles li. Menapache

t/ CHARLES M. MENAFACHE
1st Lt., JAGD
Investigating Officer
Claims Service, AFWESIAG

/ibe

A TRUE CGEY:

c-1309
GG~ 5-A~2709

Chief, E_thﬁa_ﬁlr:.s Brench
Records and ¥iscel Division

DECLASSIFIED
Authority NWND 7% % € /8



DECLASSIFIED
Authority NWD BF3078

CERTIFICATE

I, Carlos Deocampo, presently stationed at Camp Delgado,
Ilu!.:l.a'ﬂ.ltr, hereby u-r‘hry that the following is true and
eorrect:

That since 1928 1 have served oontinuously in the Philip-
ﬁu #auh‘hul-.r{ until the Japanese invasion of Panay on the
942

April 1942, was assigned to the Iloilo Company, PO. My
duty in thie company wae as Firearms Clexrk. !

That in November 1941 I know that the Provingial
Tomas Confesor, issued orders to the Provinsial Inspestor Majer
Rafasl Aloala, PO, to gather firearms from Ileilo provinse for
00" of ot Soneses) Alouis gave crders To Gapt. lisalds,
@ a8 an n
the Oity of Iloilo o eolleet firearms frem the oivilians 5.

El1 establighed » receiving seetion in Iloilo and
that Chiefs of Polise of various towns to submit to him lists
in their dorre
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